1983

Tom Snyder, Wendell K. Nash For Themselves And All Other Uintah County Taxpayers Similarly Situated v. Morris R. Cook, Uintah County Clerk-Auditor, Arden W. Stewart Sheriff Of Uintah County And Western Surety Company, A Corporate Bonding Company : Brief of Appellants

STATEMENT OF THE KIND OF CASE

THIS case arose in an action by the Plaintiffs as a class action in two separate causes of action, the first against, Morris R. Cook, individually, and a second cause of action against Arden Stewart Sheriff of Uintah County and the said Clerk Auditor, in the First Cause of action the Plaintiffs seek to enjoin the Clerk-Auditor from disbursing funds to Deputy Sheriffs allegedly illegally hired, the second cause of action seeks recovery for Moneys so allegedly illegally paid.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

Both Causes of action came before the Seventh Judicial District Court, Uintah County, Boyd Bunnell, District Judge on Defendant's Motion to Dismiss on both causes of action. The Court ruled that the actions be dismissed because Plaintiffs lacked a cause of action in both causes for relief, in the first ruling that injunctive remedies solely with the County Attorney, in the Second as relates to the Sheriff that the Plaintiffs failed to post a Bond as required by Law, and in addition that action against both defendants does not lie for their is a lack of showing of fraud and corruption.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

THIS action arose on a complaint filed by the above Plaintiff against the Clerk-Auditor and the Sheriff of Uintah County as a result of the hiring of Deputy Sheriffs without Merit approval as required by law. The suit embraced two causes of action, one praying for an injunction preventing the Clerk-Auditor from paying salaries to such officers illegally appointed, and the second seeking recovery of money's so spent against the Clerk-Auditor and Sheriff together with their bondsmen. Defendants moved for a dismissal on the ground

that the Complaint did not state a cause of action against Defendants for the reason that the injunctive remedy belonged solely to the County Attorney and that an action for money recovery could not be warranted, first that the suit could not be maintained against the Sheriff because a bond had not been posted as required by law, and secondly that there was no showing of fraud or corruption whereby a money action could be had against the Sheriff and Clerk on the other cause. From this ruling Plaintiffs appeal.

STATEMENT OF THE POINTS

- Point 1: The Court erred in holding that an action to enjoin illegal expenditure of moneys by the County Clerk-Auditor lies exclusively with the County Attorney.
- Point 2: The Court erred in holding that the failure to Post a bond is grounds for dismissal.
- Point 3: The Court erred in holding no action will lie because there is no showing of fraud or corruption.

ARGUMENT

Point 1: The Court erred in holding that an action to enjoin illegal expenditure of moneys by the County Clerk-Auditor lies exclusively with the County Attorney.

In ruling for a dismissal on the First Cause of Action praying for injunctive relief, the Court holds that U. C. A. 17-5-12¹ precludes the County Attorney from bringing injunctive action to prevent the illegal expenditure of public funds by a county official, this ruling is at variance with the facts and laws in point. While

Point 1: The above section affords the County Attorney that U. C. A. 17-5-12 ; 74 Am. Jur. 209-210, Taxpayers' Actions, Sec. 16, Wynn v Barber, 48 Calif. 2nd 890; Blair v Pitches, 5 Calif.2nd 258; Wynn v Barber, 48 Calif. 2nd 890; Samis v King, 40 Conn. 298.

it is true that the section of the Code also cited does give the County Attorney that authority, it in no way, either by implication or by express language precludes other parties that remedy when aggrieved. Indeed Am. Jur. in a section previously cited observes that the taxpayers are "equity owners" of the funds expended by public officials, and further notes that actions to enjoin illegal expenditures will lie even in the absence of statutory authorization for the same, that they will lie no matter how small the loss and will even lie to prevent where exercise of the expenditure might result in loss to the taxpayers¹. Surely a prima facie case is shown for possible loss to the taxpayers wherein illegal payments are made to deputy sheriffs not qualified by law. And to dismiss the action without a chance to show such a loss, or to withdraw the injunctive remedy is denying plaintiffs their proper remedy under the law. Similarly other portions of the Utah Code, by implication the Open Meetings law grants to the Attorney General and County Attorney power to enforce by injunction, but also accords the right of injunctive relief to other aggrieved persons. Surely, in view of the fact that the County Attorney, not only did not enforce the provisions of 17-5-12, but is actually the attorney for the offending parties, intones loudly against this recourse for remedy and reinforces a case of Equity of allowing the same to Plaintiffs.²

Point 2: The Court erred in holding that failure to post a Bond is ground for dismissal.

^{1/74} Am. Jur. 2nd, op cit., p. 210.
^{2/} U. C. A. 52-4-8,9.

1

In construing the provisions of U. C. A. 78-11-10 rigorously to apply to the facts in the present case the Court is in error. A reading of that indicates that it applies to the law-enforcement function of the Sheriff's duties and certainly does not relate to the instant case of a taxpayer's action for the misapplying of public funds. This is reinforced if we apply the principle of ejusdem generis to the section and note that it applies to "any Sheriff, constable, peace officer, state road officer, or any other person charged with enforcement of the criminal laws of this state ". Certainly this enumeration relates to causes of action a world away from the present case. And in this regard, a Constitutional issue may be raised on the ground to preclude a taxpayer of a cause of action without posting a bond would deny such a person equal protection as afforded by the Equal protection provisions of both the U. S. Constitution and the State Constitution.²

But even assuming that the bonding provision does apply, the matter is curative by allowing the Plaintiff to post such a bond and surely does not merit dismissal. In fact the law indicates the bond is "to be fixed by the Court"³ and how beforehand, before filing will the Court know what the bond will be.

Point 3: The Court erred in holding no action will lie because there is no showing of fraud or corruption.

The Court in an amazing exercise of intuition holds that no action will lie because there is no showing of fraud or corruption. Such an observation is indeed presumptuous when one notes that there has been no evidence or affidavits to base that conclusion upon.

1. U. C. A. 78-11-10

2. U. S. Constitution, Amendments Article XIV, Utah Constitution, Article Art. I, Section 24.

And certainly the allegation that the Sheriff of Union County has absolutely ignored a previously associated Merit Council and appointed Deputy Sheriffs using his own presumption in instances where the law mandated the same; and the Clerk has approved salaries for the same creates a very strong presumption of fraud.¹ Surely in view of the above facts, the possibility of law suits, losses and other actions, the taxpayers of the County and the individual taxpayers have a equitable remedy for redress.

CONCLUSION

The dismissal of both the above causes of action without an answer being filed or any affidavits relating to the same is presumptive. And noting the broad and all encompassing right of action given in taxpayers' actions, the potentially possible loss of moneys, the overt, open defiance of a clearly written law for more than four years, and similarly fact that both the Clerk and Sheriff charged with their duties with respect to the same, to warrant at least pleadings on this case.