1983

Tom Snyder, Wendell K. Nash For Themselves And All Other Uintah County Taxpayers Similarly Situated v. Morris R. Cook, Uintah County Clerk-Auditor, Arden W. Stewart Sheriff Of Uintah County And Western Surety Company, A Corporate Bonding Company : Brief of Respondents

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

Respondent, for the purpose of this appeal does not challenge Appellant's Statement of Facts, but wishes to inform the Court of the following uncontested facts. None of the Appellants have applied for a position with the Uintah County Sheriff Department nor have they ever been employed, denied promotion, fired or demoted by the Uintah County Sheriff Department. It is further an uncontested fact that the Appellants brought this suit against the Sheriff without filing the written undertaking as required by Utah Code Annotated Section 78-11-10.

ARGUMENT

POINT I: THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION BY DISMISSING APPELLANTS CAUSE OF ACTION FOR FAILURE TO FILE A WRITTEN UNDERTAKING.

Section 78-11-10 U.C.A. (1953) as amended states:

Before any action can be filed against any sheriff, constable, peace officer... when such action arises out of, or in the course of the performance of his duty, or in any action upon the bond of any such officer, the proposed Plaintiff, as a condition precedent thereto, shall prepare and file... a written undertaking with at least two sufficient sureties in an amount to be fixed by the court,... for the payment to the Defendant of all costs and expenses that may be awarded against such Plaintiff, including a reasonable attorneys fee to be fixed by the Court.

In Zamoria v. Draper, 635 P2d 78 (Utah 1981), the Utah Supreme Court interpreted this Section and held it to be constitutional when applied to cases involving officers sued for alleged wrongs committed in connection with their official duties. The Court states:

[A] person suing... should not be able to circumvent the statute by simply alleging that the Defendant acted outside his duty and thus in his private capacity. Id. at 79.

Appellants are suing Sheriff Arden Stewart for alleged violations of his duty to appoint deputies from a list certified by the Merit Counsel. This is clearly within the scope of his official duties as a Sheriff and thus the undertaking as required by Section 78-11-10 is a condition precedent to bringing such a action.

POINT II: THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION BY DISMISSING APPELLANTS' CAUSE OF ACTION FOR FAILURE TO STATE CLAIM.

A. A public official incurs no individual liability absent a showing of bad faith, fraud or corruption.

In determining whether Defendant Morris Cook could be charged with individual liability in the suit for the recovery of allegedly illegal expended funds, the Lower Court applied the rule expressed by this Court in Salt Lake County v. Clinton, 39 Utah 462, 117 P 1075 (1911), where it was held that no individual liability would be found where there was no allegation of bad faith, fraud or corruption. The Court recognized that a public officer may misconstrue a statute or a duty in good faith, and in such circumstances should not be held liable.

Even if all of the allegations of Appellants Complaint were proven, there would be no basis for liability of Defendant Morris Cook. As stated in Appellants Complaint Defendant Cook's only actions were to approve the disbursement of salaries. This falls far short of any fraud or corruption.

- B. Plaintiff's do not have standing to recover money allegedly illegally disbursed or to claim an injury for the failure to comply with the merit counsel requirement.

Utah Code Annotated Section 17-30-20 sets forth those who have standing to challenge any violation of the Merit Commission Act. The parties who have standing to allege non-compliance with the merit process are parties who have applied for the deputy sheriff position or who are presently deputy sheriffs and who have not been granted promotions or persons who are deputy sheriffs who have been either fired or demoted. Parties who fit into these categories have a right to appear before the Merit Service Commission to have their grievance heard and then if that administrative procedure does not satisfy grievance they can proceed to District Court. This class of people are parties who are directly injured by non-compliance with the statute. The Plaintiffs do not belong to this class. Plaintiffs allege that they are taxpayers and that they have a right to come in and ask the Court to award the the deputy sheriffs' salaries. The Plaintiffs have not sustained an injury which is any different than that of the general public and therefore lack standing to bring this action.

Furthermore the Plaintiffs have failed to follow the proper procedure when there is an alleged unlawful expenditure of county funds. Utah Code Annotated Section 17-5-12 sets forth a procedure by which unlawful expenditures of county funds are recovered. The Plaintiffs have made no demand on the county attorneys office nor presented any facts to the county attorney indicating that there was an unauthorized expenditure of funds. Surely the Plaintiffs must first make a demand to the county attorney's office before they can proceed any further. Finally Rule 65(b) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure indicates that in the event the county attorney's office will not act on the unauthorized expenditure of funds then the attorney general's office should be notified and asked to take appropriate action. If the attorney general refuses to do so then the Plaintiff might have some right to bring an action for an unlawful expenditure of county funds. See Tabor vs. Moore 503 P2d 736 (Wash 1972). Even at that time the Plaintiffs would have to show a direct injury to themselves different than that of the general public so as to have standing to bring this action.

CONCLUSION

Section 78-11-10 U.C.A. (1953) and its interpretation in Zamoria v. Draper leaves little doubt that the filing of undertaking is a condition precedent to bring an action against a peace officer for wrongs committed within the scope of his

duties. Under the Clinton rule public officers have no individual liability absent bad faith, fraud or corruption. Furthermore Appellants lacks standing under Section 17-30-20 and Section 17-5-12 U.C.A. (1953) as amended.